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MEMORANDUM 

TO: 
FROM: 
SUBJECT: 

DATE: 

Chairman Burdette and Planning and Zoning Commission 
Jon R. Oliphant, AICP, Planning & Development Director 
Public Hearing - Request by Monica! Pizza Corporation to Rezone 1901 Stoneway Drive from 1-1 to 
C-2
April 24, 2023

Zoning: 1-1 (Light Industrial) 
Comprehensive Plan: General Commercial 

Summary: Monica! Pizza Corporation has requested the rezoning of 1901 Stoneway Drive from 1-1 (Light Industrial) to 
C-2 (General Retail) to allow Monical's Pizza to construct a future restaurant. Staff recommends approval of the
rezoning as detailed below.

Background: The Brownstone Business Park was platted in 1995. It was intended to accommodate the future 
construction of a new facility for Boley Tool and Machine Works. That construction did not occur and the only 
development on the eight lots has been a warehouse structure that was built in 1995. Each of the lots is ready for 
development, as water and sewer mains extend from N. Cummings Lane to the end of tlie Stoneway cul-de-sac. The 
property is owned by Boley Tool and Machine Works and would be sold to Monica! Pizza Corporation contingent upon 
the approval of the rezoning request. 

Monical's Pizza has been at its current location at 6 Cherry Tree Shopping Center for about 40 years. The company 
desires to have a new free-standing restaurant that has a pickup window and a seating capacity greater than the 
current location. It would provide a chance to update its interiors, create a fresh exterior, and hopefully provide 
additional employment opportunities in Washington. Dine-in service, pickup, and delivery will continue to be offered. It 
would like to commence construction and be open prior to the expiration of its current lease in June 2026. 

The 1901 Stoneway Drive property is approximately 1.59 acres. The N. Cummings corridor is a major collector road 
with an average daily traffic count of nearly 8,000 at this location, making it attractive to possible commercial 
businesses with nearby access from US 24 and Business Route 24. Primary access would likely be accommodated 
on Stoneway, though an existing curb-cut exists on the north end of the property from N. Cummings. 

The N. Cummings corridor. contains a mix of commercial and industrial properties. The proposed zoning is appropriate 
_for this property. While other properties on the west side of N. Cummings are zoned 1-1, most parcels on the east side 
are zoned either C-2 or C-3 (Service Retail). The draft comprehensive plan deems this property as General 
Commercial, which would be compatible with the proposed zoning. The lots with direct frontage onto N. Cummings 
have_ more sales tax production potential than those further set back west on Stoneway that are identified as Light 
Industrial. The proposed use would nof appear to be detrimental to surrounding property values and would allow for 
greater use of the subject property, which currently g_enerates minimal property tax without any improvements. The 
property has been zoned 1-1 since the platting of Brownstone Business Park, which is another key factor in considering 
a rezoning to C-2. The property is in the Enterprise Zone. 

Due to these reasons, the property is suitable for the proposed rezoning. Staff recommends approval of the rezoning 
of the 1901 Stoneway Drive property from 1-1 to C-2. 

A public hearing will be held by the Planning and Zoning Commission at their meeting on Wednesday, May 3. 

Enclosures 

cc: Monica! Pizza Corporation 
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